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Chairman’s Statement

Pictures on these
pages show the

refurbisbment of

extensive

Africa House,
Kingsway, London,

w2

I have pleasure 1n presenting my Report and our Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013

This year, the UK has seen a continuation of the difficult operating conditions to which we have
become accustomed in recent times In the USA however, our experience has been more
encouraging with a move to a more normal trading environment Against this background it 1s
pleasing to be able to report an uphft 1n value of our investment property holdings of 12 2% and a
profit before tax of £111 7 mullion, both represent a significant increase on last year's levels

Investment properties

The table below shows a summary of the valuation of our investment property

Valuation Percentage

March 2013 change
£m

Commercial property
UK 6390 +12 7%
USA 44 9 +16 1%
Residential property
UK 464 3 +8.9%
USA 262 4 +16.8%
Total 1,410 6 +12.2%
Revaluation

Once again 1n the UK we have seen strong growth from our Central London residential properues
but only modest growth n the value of residential properties outside the London area The net result
of these movements was an 8 7% uplhift (2012 - 3 8%) This year’s revaluation of UK commercial
property has benefited from a sigmficant uplift 1n the value of Africa House, WC2 where the major
refurbishment programme 1s close to completion In general the pattern has been for increases in
Londen commercial property values to be counterbalanced by downward movement 1n values in the
provinces In aggregate, UK commercial properties produced a net upward movement upon
revaluation of 3 1% (2012 - 3 0% reduction) The overall net result of the revaluation of all UK
propertics was an uplift of £54 9 mullion, equivalent to 5 5% (2012 - 0 2% reduction)

In the USA a combmnation of strong demand and improving rents in the residential sector and
improved tenant operating mncome and capitalisation rates in the commercial sector has resulted 1n
uplifts 1n property values 1n all of the areas in which we operate New York properties in particular
continue to show signuficant growth In totzl the valuation increase in our USA portfolio was
$43 0 oullion (2012 - $29 7 nulhon) equivalent to 10 1% (2012 - 7 7%)

Movement in valuation of the total investment property portfolio

The table below provides an analysis of the movement 1n the value of the total investment property
portfoho and the impact of acquisimons, additions and disposals, together with revaluation and
foreign exchange movements over the year

2013 2012

£m &m

Opening valuarion 1,254.1 1,224 8
New acquisitions 37.2 151
Addinons to existing propertes 20.5 105
Disposals (0 6) (12 6)
1,311 2 1,2378

Revaluauon gain 82.7 157
Foreign exchange gain 13.6 06
Closing valuation* 1,407 5 1,254 1

*In this table and n the financial statements, the total valuatuon of £1,407 $ million (2012 - 1,254 1 pulbion) 1s stated net of
£3 1 millon (2012 - £2 6 mullion) of lease incentves, as requured by accountng standards - see Note 9 to the consolidated
financral statements
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Chairman’s Statement wnmmen

Pictures on these

' pages show the new
scerc Iifts and a
detarl of the new
eighth floor at
Africa House,
Kingsway London,
w2

New investment and funding

Dunng the year we have added to our property holdings 1n Oxford Street, W1 with an acquisitton at
a cost of £36 5 mullion We are constantly alert for new investment opportumities which meet our
rigorous selecuon criteria We will only invest where an asset 1s likely to produce meamngful long
term increases mn value

During the year a total of £20 5 million (2012 - £10 5 mullhon) was spent on additions to existing
properties

We have, during the period, seen a shight improvement in the terms being quoted for bank finance
alben that such funding 1s of a relatively short term nature, typically 7 years or less A healthy UK
economy and, 1n particular, the property investment sector require a return to the market of more
lenders offering longer term finance to fund tthacqmsmon of long term assets

Analysis by property type

Property UK Property UsA

R Comprercial £636 Om W Residenial £464 3m W Commerceal £44 9 W Restdenial £262 4m
Commercial Property UK Commercial Properly UsA

W Gffices £237 7m WM Reterl £303 9m W Offices £42 2m W Reiail £2 7

W Lesure £33 Im W Land & Development £18 8m
B [ndusinigl £30 3m L2 Gare Homes £15 2m

Analysis by location

UK Valuations LISA Valuabons

W [ondon & tbe South £883 3m W New York £160 3m W Florda £62 2m

W Midlands & East Angla £105 9m W Bosion £35 Im W New Jersey £30 7m
W Wales & West £59 Om WM Baltimore £16 3m {22 Pennsylvania £2 7m
&8 North & Scotland £55 2m
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Chairman’s Statement conume

Above and below
780-90

Grand Concourse,
The Bronx,

New York, USA

Development Activity

The major scheme of refurbishment at Africa House, WC2 continued throughout the year The project
1s now scheduled to complete 1n August 2013 and tenant marketing 1s about to commence This
year’s professional revaluatton has confirmed a sigmificant uplift 1n the value of thus property

We continue actively to explore potential development opportunities within our property portfolio
with a view to enhancing rental mcome and thereby capntal values Our long term and prudent
approach to development activity means that it can take several years to bring projects to
compleuon In adchtion to several smaller development projects which are currently under way, we
are considerng a number of more significant schemes which I would hope to be able to report on
1n subsequent years

Results for the year

The profit before taxauon for the year ended 31 March 2013 amounts to £111 7 muhion (2012 -
£41 9 million) The result includes a net valuation gain of £82 7 milhon arising on mvestment
properues (2012 - £15 7 million)

The table below shows the performance of our core rental business before and after valuation
movements

2013 2012

sm Sm

Total rental and related income from investment property 111.0 1071
Property operating expenses (67.0) (68 0)
Net rental and related income from investment property 440 391
Profit on disposals of investment property 66 162
Administrauve expenses (10 9) (a1
Net operaung profit before net valuation gains 397 44 2
Net valuauon gains on mnvestment property 827 157
Net financing costs (107) (18 0)
Profit before taxation 1117 419

Page 6




Daejan Holdings PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2013

This year has seen increases in rental income 1n both the UK and USA which when combined with
a shght reduction in operating expenses results i1 an increase 1n net rental and related income from
mvestment property of £4 9 million ( 2012 - £2 9 million reduction)

Residential occupancy rates have contmued to improve mn both the UK and USA The UK commercial
market continues to be dufficult particularly outside the London area where, 1n some locatons, we
have experienced downward pressure on both occupancy rates and rental levels

Last year's profit on disposals of investment property benefited from the sale of a sigmificant
development site which has not been repeated The sale of lease extensions has continued mn 2013
at a very sumular level to the previous year

Interest costs have reduced by £0 5 million and this, when combined with a significant reduction
the farr value adjustments on financial instruments has resulted 1n an overall reducuion 1n net
financing costs of £7 3 milhon (2012 - £9 7 mullion mcrease)

Dividend

It 1s a tribute to the strength and steady growth of your Company that the Board has been able to
sustain or increase the annual dividend for many years including the recession years which we have
experienced of late

The encouraging results in 2013 combined with our confidence for the future gives your Board the
basis on which to recommend an increase 1n the total dividend to 79p (2012 - 76p)

Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2013 shareholder’s funds amounted to £984 9 milhion (2012 restated - £903 8 mullion)
Thas 1s equivalent to £60 44 per share (2012 restated - £55 46) an increase of 8 9%

Cash deposits at 31 March 2013 amounted to £63 5 million (2012 - £32 5 mullton) Undrawn medium
term faciitics were £20 mulion (2012 - £64 6 mllion)

Geanng at 18 9% 1s up from 16 9% last year although it remains comparatively low for the property
ndustry

Above & below.
325 East 80th Street,
Manbattan

Below left

41-25 44th Street,
Sunnyside, Queens,
New York, USA
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Chairman’s Statement cosmue)

Above & below
Cadogan Square,

Glasgow

Following changes in accountung standards 1t has been necessary to restate the balance sheets for
1 Apni 2011 and 31 March 2012 The impact on the pnior year opemng balance sheet has been to
increase retained carmings by £44 9 mullion The detail of this restatement together with 1ts impact
on current and prior year financial statements 15 set out 2 note 1(b) on page 29 of the Report and
Accounts

Environment

Where we undertake new developments and major schemes of refurbishment we strive to achreve
the highest environmental standards consistent with the nature of the building and the scheme being
undertaken This can be clearty seen with the Africa House scheme which has achieved a BREEAM
excellent rating (BREEAM 15 a widely used environmental assessment method for buildings) It also
includes other environmental features such as a bro-mass boier, ranwater harvesting and bio-diverse
planung together with facilities to enable and encourage cycling to work

So far as concerns the majornity of our portfolio, which consists of properties constructed before the
advent of modern environmental standards, 1t would be neither practically nor economucally feasible
to embark on a complete upgrade to meet modern requirements However, we do take the
opportumties which arise each year when undertaking programmes of repair and refurbishment to
mprove the energy efficiency of our buildings and the plant therein

Employees

Every orgamsauon ulimately depends for its success upon the dedication and professionahsm of its
staff We are fortunate that our pohcy of sustaning a stable workforce who stay with us for the long
term ensures that experience gained over the years 1s retamned and apphed for the benefit of the
Group

Staff are encouraged to pursuc appropriate programmes of traiung and development

Health and safety

We recognise the importance of ensuring that our properties provide a safe and healthy environment
for our tenants, staff and all other users We zpproach this issue n two ways
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B Ensuring that all members of staff from caretakers to surveyors receive continuing tramning in the

identification and management of health and safety risks Every member of staff 1s required to be
famihar with health and safety policies and has responsibibity for ensurmg that they are
umplemented 1n their area of work

Specialist consultants are retaned to undertake regular cychcal rsk assessments of all properties
for which we have responsibility Issues rarsed by this process are allocated to a dedicated team
to ensure they are resolved on a timely basis This team also monitors performance and
comphance

A report 1s prepared and presented annually at Board and semor management level to ensure that
there 1s an awareness of health and safety 1ssues at the highest level wathin the Group

Community

We have long recognised the importance of supporting the communities 1n which we operate This
takes two principal forms

B Donations, largely to educational chanties, this year the donations amounted to £150,000 (2012
- £150,000)

B Dividends on donated shares Following the donanon some years ago to charities of shares
representing 6 3% of the capatal of the Company, dividend payments in the year of £785,000
(2012 - £775,000) have passed to charitable compames

Risks

The risks which we face fall into two categories

Sectoral risks

These are risks common to all compames operating in the investment property sector

The slow return to economc growth in the UK means that there 1s a continued risk of fallure
amongst tenants which could result in increased bad debts, a loss of rental income and increased
vacancies In the USA a return to modest economuc growth means that this 1s less of an 1ssue

Above & below left

Watley Court,
London WCl1

Below

Vincent Court,

London NW4
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Chairman’s Statement wmmes

This page
Glenlock Court,
West Hampstead,
London, NW3

Banking institutions are under pressure from Government to make funds available to business At
the same time those mstitutions are under pressure from regulatory authonties to strengthen
therr capitat ratios and 1n this regard the weightings attached to long term lending are the most
stringent The nisk of these contradictory pressures 1s that the avallabiity of long term finance
essential to fund acqusinions, developments and major schemes of refurbishment may be
curtaled

Company risks

These are the nisks specific to the Company which arse from the way we undertake our business

In the last two years the growth in value of our UK portfolio has almost entirely been derived
from propertics in the London area Untul growth returns to the country as a whole, any
slowdown 1 the rate of growth 1n the Central London market could significantly reduce the net
annual revaluation vplifts on the UK portfoho Changes in aggregate property values have a direct
impact on the net worth of the Company

With over 20% by value of the Group’s property portfoho located in the USA, movements in the
sterling/dollar exchange rate will produce accounting adjustments in the Group’s consohdated
financial statements The overall impact in the current year 15 not sigmificant but this may not
always be the case

Changes 1n market interest rates may result in fair value adjustments to the financial instruments
which we hold which 1n turn may impact on the reported profit
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Qutlook

In the USA 1t 15 encouraging to see a return to economic growth which s brninging with 1 an
mcreased demand for accommodation which n turn leads to improved rental and capital values

So far as the UK 15 concerned 1t has been reported that the economy avoided a “double-dip”
recession Unfortunately the overall rate of growth 15 presently so feeble as to be barely detectable,
although recently there have been some voices anncipating real improvement

Withun the UK the London market 15 continuing to drive ahead and now seems to be uncoupled from
the rest of the couniry where we have seen only modest growth and 1in some cases values have
continued to ship This trend looks set for the immediate future Fortunately the majority of our UK
properties are situated 1in and around London

We have a diversified portfolio whuch 1s well placed to benefit from those parts of the market which
are likely to experience growth in the comung year Qur focus continues to be on delivering steady
long term growth 1n profits and asset values by the application of our entreprencurial but prudent
approzch to business Expenence shows that this approach has served us well over the years and
will contnue to do so 1in the future

Our sincere thanks must go to our dedicated and hardworking staff for their efforts on behalf of the
Group throughout the year

B § E Freshwater
Chatrman

This page
Beacontree Plaza,
Reading, Berks
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Directors’ Report

The Drrectors have pleasure 1n presenting their report together with the financial statements for the
year to 31 March 2013

Principal Actunties of the Group

Daejan Heldings PLC 15 a holding company whose principal activity, carried on through its subsichary
undertakings, 15 property mvestment In addition, where suitable opportunities are identified within
the Group’s investment portfolio, some development 1s also undertaken The majonty of the Group's
property portfolio comprises commercial, industrial and residential premises throughout the UK, but
the Group also has a sigmificant portfolio of commercial and residential properties on the eastern
seaboard of the USA The Group’s business model 1s generally to hold its investment property for the
long term to generate rental ncome and capital appreciatuon, funded wherever possible by retained
earmings and long term finance However, each of the Group's mvestment properties are considered
1o be potentially for sale in the night ¢ircumstances

Investment Property

A professional valuation of all the Group’s properties was carnied out at 31 March 2013 The resultant
figures are included in the financial statements now presented and the net increase of £82 7 mulhion
(2012 - £15 7 million) over previous book values has been included in the income statement The
Group's UK properties were valued by Colliers International, Chartered Surveyors and produced a
revaluanon surplus of £54 4 milion (2012 - £2 5 mulhon deficit) The Group’s USA properties were
valued by Joseph J Blake and Associates, Inc and Metropohtan Valuation Services, Inc both of which
are Certified General Real Estate Appraisers The revaluation surplus ansing on the USA properties
was £28 3 million (2012 - £18 2 mullion)

Business Revew

The Group’s business review 1s included in the Chairman’s Statement set out on pages 2 to 11 and
15 ncluded n this report by reference

Results and Dwrdend

The profit for the year amounted to £89 8 million (2012 - £33 0 millron, as restated) An intenm
dividend of 25p per share was paid on 8 March 2013 and the Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dinidend of 54p per share, making a total for the year of 79p per share (2012 -
76p per share)

Fmancial Objectwes and Policies and Exposure to Financal Risk

The Group operates a cautious financial policy within clear authorities on a nonspeculative and long
term basis 1n order to enable the Group te carry on its business 1n confidence and with strength The
Group aims t¢ ensurc that the cost of capital 1s kept to a minumum through the maintenance of its
many long standing relanonships with leading banks and other financial nstitutions The Group seeks
to mummse the nsk of sudden and unexpected rises in finance costs by way of fixed rate debt and
financial dertvatve instruments whulst retaining some flexibility 1n relation to short term interest rates

There 15 no obhigation or present intention to repay the Group’s borrowings other than at matunty

Payment Policy

It 15 the Group's policy 10 settle the terms of payment with supphers when agreemng the terms of
each contract or transaction, to ensure that those supphers are aware of those terms and 1o abide by
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the agreed terms of payment, providing that 1t 15 satisfied that the suppler has provided the goods
or services 1n accordance with the agreed terms and conditions The Group does not, however, follow
any formal code or statcment on payment practice

Drrectors

The Directors who served throughout the year,and who are still in office, are
Mr B S E Freshwater

Mr D Davis

Mr S I Freshwater

Mr R E Freshwater

Mr A M Freshwater (USA)

Brief biographies of the Directors are as follows

Mr B § E Freshwater Aged 65 - Jomed the Board in December 1971 with primary responsibility for
the Group's finances In July 1976 he was appointed Managing Director and, additionally, became
Charrman n July 1980

Mr D Davis Aged 78 - Previously a partner in Cohen Arnold, the Group’s consulting accountants He
relinquished his partnership in 1971 1n order to devote more ume to hus numerous business and
other interests He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since December 1971

Mr § 1 Freshwater Aged 62 - Directs the Group's operations m the USA and also has responsibihity
for the Group’s UK sales division He has been a Director of the Company smce January 1986

Mr R E Freshwater Aged 43 - He 1s currently pursuing an academic career and lectures to graduate
students He 1s an actual and a potential beneficiary of trusts and a trustee of certain other trusts with
substantial holdings of the Company’s equity He was appomted to the board 1n 2010

Mr A M Freshwater Aged 42 - He 15 resident i the UK and sits as an Arbitrator in complex
commercial disputes He 15 a potential beneficiary of trusts and a trustee of certain other trusts with
substantial holdings of the Company’s equity He was appomnted to the board n 2010

The rules goverming the clection and reelecuon of Directors are set out in the Corporate

Governance section on page 18 The powers of Directors of the Company are as set out in the
Company'’s articles of association

Drreclors’ Interests in Transactions

Day-to-day management of the Group's properties in the United Kingdom 1s mainly carried out by
Highdorn Co Lumited and by Freshwater Property Management Limited Mr B S E Freshwater and Mr
S [ Freshwater are Directors of both companics They have no beneficial interest 1in the share capital
of Highdorn Co Limuted Mr B § E Freshwater, Mr § I Freshwater and Mr D Dawvis are also Directors
of the parent company of Freshwater Property Management Limited but have no beneficial mterest
in either company Mr R E Freshwater has a beneficial interest in a trust holding interests n shares
in Highdorn Co Limited

Detaits of the amounts paid for the provision of these services are sct out 1n Note 18 to the financial
statements
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Directors’ Report wnmue

Share Caputal and Substantial Directors’ and other Shareholdings

The structure of the Company’s share capital, including the rights and obligations attaching to the
shares, 15 given 1n Note 14 to the financial statements

Directors’ interests in the share caprtal of the Company are as follows

Daejan Holdings PLC

Ordinary Shares

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

D Davis (Notes 2 & 3) 763 763

B § E Freshwater (Notes 1,2,3 & 4) 340,033 340,033

§ I Freshwater (Notes 2,3 & 4) 89,270 89,270

R E Freshwater {(Notes 2 & 3) - -

A M Freshwater (Notes 2 & 3) - -
Notes

1

4

All the above holdings were beneficially owned Mr B § E Freshwater's shareholding represents 2 1% of the
Issued Share Capital of the Company

A further 2,908,110 shares (2012 - 2,908,116) representing 17 8% of the issued share capital of the
Company were held by Freshwater fammly trusts and by chantable compames in which Mr B § E Freshwater,
Mr § 1 Freshwater, Mr D Davis and Mr A M Freshwater have no beneficial interest Mr S I Freshwater and
Mr A M Freshwater are trustees of a trust winch owns 250,000 shares representung 1 5% of the 1ssued share
caprtal of the Company Mr R E Freshwater has a beneficial interest 1n certain trusts referred to  this Note 2
which together hold 326,294 shares, representing 2 0% of the tssued share capital of the Company

In addizon 1o the holdings shown in the table and 1n Note 2 above, companies owned and controlled by
Mr B § E Freshwater, Mr 8 I Freshwater, their farmbes and famualy trusts, held at 31 March 2013 a total of
7,876,431 shares (2012 - 7,876,431) represenung 48 3% of the ssued share capuat of the Company
Mr D Davis and Mr A M Freshwater have 2 non-beneficial interest in some of these shares, either as a Director
of the companies concerned, or as a trustce Mr R E Freshwater has a beneficial interest in certain trusts
included n this Note 3 which indirectly have interests un 3,774,853 shares, representing 23 2% of the 1ssued
share captal of the Company

Of these shares 89,270 are held by a company owned jointly by Mr B § E Freshwater and Mr § [ Freshwater

Included 1in Notes 2 and 3 above are the following holdings at 31 March 2013, each amounting to 3%
or more of the Company’s 1ssued share capital

Shares %
Henry Davies (Holborn) Limiuted 1,934,090 119
Trustees of the § 1 Freshwater Settlement 1,560,000 96
Distinctive Invesunents Limuted 1,464,550 90
Quoted Secunties Limited 1,305,631 80
Centrermnanor Limited 1,000,000 61
Mayfair Chatines Limited 565,000 35
Tabard Property Investment Company Limuted 500,000 31

In addition, the Company has been notfied of the following substantial interests n 1ts 1ssued share
capital at 31 March 2013

Shares %
Valand Investments Limited 1,000,000 61
Silda 2 Exmated 705,000 43
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The Company 15 not aware of any changes to any of the above interests from 31 March 2013 up to
the date of sigrnng thus report

Swgruficant Agreements

Part 6 of Schedule 7 of the Large and Medivm-sized Compames and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 requires the Company to wlenufy those significant agreements to which the
Company 1s party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid and the effects of any such agreements

The Group has six bank loan and mortgage faclines which contain change-of-control clauses Four
of these facihties require the prior wnitten consent of the lender to a change of control over the
parent company, without which such change of control would constitute an event of default A
change of control under the remaining two faciities would similarly constitute an event of default
but no provision 15 made for the prior written consent of the lender At 31 March 2013, these
facuities represented £122 8 millhion (2012 - £79 2 milhon) of the loans and borrowings in the
financial statements and all of the undrawn facilities €20 O mullion, 2012 - £64 6 mulhion)

Charitable Donations

Chartable donations made by the Group amounted to £150,000 (2012 - £150,000) There were no
pohtical contributions (2012 - £Nil)

Auditor

The Company’s auditor, KPMG Audit Ple, has notified the Company that 1t 15 not secking
reappowntment due 1o a planned transfer of 1ts business to its parent entity, KPMG LLP In accordance
with Section 485 of the Companies Act, resolutions for the appointment of KPMG LLP as auditor of
the Company, and to authonse the Directors to determine 1ts remuneration, are to be proposed at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Statement of Disclosure of Information to the Auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far
as they each are aware there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s
unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps he ought to have taken as a Director to make
humself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor 1s aware

M R M Jenner
Secretary

17 July 2013
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Audited Information

Details of each individual Director’s remuneration are set out below on an accruals basis

Salary Fees Total

2013 5 £ &
Mr B § E Freshwater 800,000 20,000 820,000
Mr D Davis - 20,000 20,000
Mr S I Freshwater 750,000 20,000 770,000
Mr R E Freshwater - 20,000 20,000
Mr A M Freshwater - 20,000 20,000

1,550,000 100,000 1,650,000
2012
Mr B § E Freshwater 750,000 20,000 770,000
Mr D Davis - 20,000 20,000
Mr § I Freshwater 676,875 20,000 696,875
Mr R E Freshwater - 20,000 20,000
Mr A M Freshwater - 20,000 20,000

1,426,875 100,000 1,526,875
Unaudited Information
Compliance

The Company’s comphance with the requirements of The UK Corporate Governance Code 1ssued
by the Financial Reporung Council 1n June 2010 1s set out under Corporate Governance on page 20

Policy

The remuneration policy adopted by the Board 15 designed 1o ensure that the Directors’ imnterests are
allied to the long-tert growth of the Group and therefore to the interests of the shareholders as a
whole The Group does not operate any form of bonus scheme or share option scheme since the
executive Directors’ salanes for the year are determined by the Board once the results for the year
are known, with any salary increase calculated and paird with effect from the beginming of the
financial year The Group pays no pension contributions 1n respect of the Directors

Remuneration of non-executive Directors

The fees of the non-execuuve Directors are reviewed penodically by the executive Directors who
make recommengations to the Board The current level of £20,000 has been fixed for a number of
years

Service contracts
No Director has a service contract
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Total shareholder return

The following graph shows the total shareholder returns for the Company (rebased as at 1 April
2008) for cach of the last five financial years compared to the FTSE All Share Real Estate Investment
and Services Index and the FTSE 350 Index The Company 1s a constituent of both these indices and
the Board considers these to be the most appropnate broad market equity indices for illustrating the
Company’s performance

Total shareholder return performance graph

e DAEJAN HOLDINGS PLC

= FYSE ALL SHARE REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS AND SERVICES Source Thomson Reuters Datastrearn
— FYSE 350

rovet] by ghe Board on 17 July 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

—J

M R M Jenner
Company Secretary
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Corporate Governarnce

Corporate Governance

The Board 1s required by the Financial Services Authority to report on the extent of its application
of the principles and of its compliance with the provisions contaned in the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code™)

Your Board fully supports the goal of better corporate governance and we comply with the majority
of the principles of the Code

We do not comply with the provisions of the Code 1in connection with non-executive representation
on the Board, as we are doubtful that further extending independent non-execunive participation at
present would benefit our shareholders We consider it vatal that the principles of a unitary Board of
Darectors shanng responsibility for all facets of the Company’s business should not be undermaned
by reserving areas of decision making solely for non-executive Directors For this reason the matters
which the Code recommends should be reserved for audit, nomunation and remuneration
commuttees are dealt with by the entire Board and 1t 1s intended to continue this practice In view of
the fact that the Board compnses only five Directors 1t 1s also not considered necessary to splht the
roles of Chairman and Chief Execuuve Executive remuneration 15 not directly related to
performance, but a hink 1s established by the fact that remuneration 1s not agreed upon untl after the
results for the year are known

Changes should be made when they are appropnate and in the best interests of the Company, rather
than for the sake of change itself This Company has a successful track record and whalst the Board
will continue to keep under review any proposals which may improve the efficiency of its
operations, the current structure has stood the Company 1n good stead over many years and should
continue to do so n the future

The Board

The Group 15 controlled through its Board of Ihrectors The Board’s mamn roles are to create value for
shareholders, to provide entreprencunal leadership of the Group, to approve the Group’s strategic
objectives and to ensure that the necessary financial and other resources are made available to
enable those abjectives to be met

The Board meets regulatly throughout the year on both a formal and informal basis Comprehensive
management information covenng all aspects of the Group’s business 1s supphed to the Board in 2
umely manner and in a form and quality 1o enable 1t to discharge 1ts duties The Board’s principal
focus, 1n accordance with the formal schedule of matters referred to it for decision, 1s on the
formation of strategy and the monitoring and control of operations and financial performance The
performance of the Board 15 kept under constant review by the Chairman and therefore 1t 15 not
considered necessary to undertake a more formal process of evaluanen either internally or externally
All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who 1s responsible for ensuring comphance with
the Board procedures The Board has agreed a procedure for Directors in the furtherance of their
duties to take independent professional advice 1f necessary, at the Company’s expense

The Board consults on a regular basis with the Group’s external auditor and 1s charged with ensunng
that its objectivity and independence 1s safeguarded

The entire Board 1s responsible for the selection and approval of candidates for appointment to the
Board All Directors reure and submut themselves for re<clection to shareholders at Annual General
Meetings each year

During the year there were two full, formal board meetings attended by all Directors
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Directors and Directors’ Independence

The Board currently comprises the Chairman, who acts in an executive capacity, one further
executive Director and three non-executive Directors The names of the Directors together with their
biographical details are set out on page 13 Mr R E Freshwater and Mr A M Freshwater are not
independent by virtue of therr membership of the Freshwater famuly The Board acknowledges that,
1n view of his length of service, Mr D Davis 1s not technically independent

Darectors’ Remuneration

Detals of the Directors’ remuneration are contamned m the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
page 16

Internal Controls

The Board 15 ulumately responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness However, such a system 15 desighed 10 manage rather than ehminate the risk of fature
to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss

The Code requures that the Directors review the effectiveness of the Group's system of internal
controls, covering financial, operational and comphance controls and rnisk management The Board
confirms that there 15 an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
business risks faced by the Group and that this process has been 1n place for the year under review
and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements This process 1s
reviewed by the Board at regular intervals and accords with the Turnbull guidance

The Board has considered the benefits likely to arise from the appomntment of an internal audst
function and has concluded that this 1s not currently necessary having regard to other controls
which operate within the Group

Key elements of the Group’s system of internal controls are as follows

Contirols environment The Group 15 comnutted to the highest standards of business conduct and
secks to masntain these standards across all its operatuons The Group has a clear orgamsational
structure for planming, executing and monitoring business operations mn order to achieve the Group's
objectives Lines of responsibihity and delegation of authority are well defined

Risk identification and evaluatfon Management 1s responsible for the identfication and evaluation
of key risks applicable to the areas of the property market which impact its objectives These risks
are assessed on a continual basis and may be associated with a variety of internal and external
sources The Board considers the risk imphcations of business decisions including those affecting all
major transactions

Information and communication Penodic strategic reviews are carried out which include the
consideration of long term financal projections Financial performance 1s acuvely monstored at
Board level Through these mechamsms group performance 15 momtored, risks wdentified 1n a imely
manner, therr imphcations assessed, control procedures re-evaluated and corrective actions agreed
and implemented

Control procedures The Group has implemented control procedures designed to ensure complete
and accurate accounting for financial transactions and to mit the potential exposure to loss of assets
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or fraud Measures mclude physical controls, segregation of duties, reviews by management and
reviews by the Company’s external auditors to the extent necessary to arrive at their audit opuon

Monitoring and corrective action The Board meets regularly, formally and informally, throughout
the year to review the nternal controls This includes an annual review of the sigmificant business
risks, formally censidering the scope and effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control In
addruion, the executive Directors and semtor management staff have a close involvemnent in the day
to day operations of the Group and as such the controls are subject to ongoing monitoring

Investor Relations

The Board values cornmunication with private and instututional shareholders and with analysts The
Annual General Meeting 1s used as the primary opportunity for the Board as a whole to meet private
shareholders Other opportunities are taken as they anise during the year to discuss the strategic and
other ssues with institutional shareholders and analysts

The Board conunues to support the concept of indmdual resolutions on separate 1ssues at Annual
General Meetings Details of proxy voung on each reselution are disclosed to the meeting after it has
been dealt with by a show of hands In accordance with the Code, notice of the Annual General
Mecung and the Annual Report and Financial Statements will be sent to shareholders at least twenty
working days before the meeting

Fmancial Reporting

The Board 15 responsible for the preparation of the Annual Report and Financial Statements within
which 1t seeks to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's business Further
details are given in the Chairman’s Statement

Compliance Statement

The Board considers the Company has complied throughout the year ended 31 March 2013 wath the
provisions of the Code with the exception of the following paragraphs

Paragraph Subject

A21,A31 Division of Chairman and CEO responsibihties
A41-2,B12 Non-executive directors and composition of the Board
B214,B312 Nomunation commttee and 1ts responsibilities

B613 Evaluation of the Board

C316 Audit commuttee and 1ts responsibihtics

D11,D21-2 Remuneration commuttee and its responstbilitics
Gotng Concern

The Group’s business activities, together wiath the factors likely to affect us future development,
performance and position are set out 1n the Charrman'’s Statement on pages 2 to 11, whuch also refers
to the financial position of the Group, its cash flows, hquidity position and borrowing facihties In
addition, Note 17 to the financial statements includes the Group's objectives, polictes and processes
for managing 1ts financial risks, together with details of its financial instruments, hedging activities
and exposures to credit, hquidity and market risks
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As shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Group generated net cash from operating
acuvities of £24 0 million dunng the year (2012 - £11 1 mulhon) Gearing, on the basis of gross debt
to total assets, was 18 9% (2012 - 16 9%) Net debt (total loans and borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents) has increased to £223 7 mulhion (2012 - £198 7 million), due principally to the
acqusition of and additions to investment property and the Group has undrawn commutted facilines
of £20 0 mullion at the balance sheet date The Group has considerable financial resources and very
low gearing and therefore, the Directors consider that the Group 1s well placed to manage its
business risks successfully despite the continued uncertain economic outlook Consequently, the
Drrectors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus they contunue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting 1n prepanng the financial statements
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Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities tn respect of the Annual Report and
Fmancial Statemenis

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the group and parent company
financal statements 1n accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for
cach financial year Under that law they are required to prepare the group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“IFRS™) and
apphcable law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements 1n accordance
with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generalty Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financul statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their
profit or loss for that period In preparing each of the group and parent company financial
statements, the Directors are required to

B select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
| make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

a for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS,

| for the parent company financial statements, state whether apphcable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any matenial departures disclosed and explained n
the parent company financial statements, and

B prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inapproprate to
presume that the group and the parent company will continue 1 business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other rregularities

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for prepaning a Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuncration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that
law and those regulations

The Dhrectors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegnty of the corporate and financial
information included on the company’s website Legislation m the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation n other jurisdictions

By order of the Board,

/
VA SViLP A~
B § E Freshwater
Director

17 July 2013

Page 22




Daejan Holdings PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2013

Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent audifor’s report to the members of Daejan Holdmgs PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Daejan Holdings PLC for the year ended 31 March 2013
set out on pages 25 to 52 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the group financial statements 15 apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial reperting framework that has been apphed m the
preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and UK Accounting
Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, mn accordance wath Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 1n the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 22, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view Our respoensibility 1s to audit, and express an opimon on, the financial statements
mn accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements s provided on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinton on financial statements

In our opmon

B the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent
company’s affars as at 31 March 2013 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

[ ] the group financial statements have been properly prepared m accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU,

B the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared i accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounung Practice,

B the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companes Act 20006, and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation
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Independent Auditor’s Report conmues

Opmion on other matters prescribed by the Companzes Act 2006

In our opinion

the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Compames Act 2006,

the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements, and

the information given i the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 18 to 21 with
respect to mternal control and risk management systems in relation to financial reporting
processes and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requured to report t0 you if, in our opmion

adequate accountmg records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not viseted by us, or

the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

certain chsclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

the directors’ statement, set out on pages 20 and 21, 1n relation to gotng concern,
the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on page 20 relatmg to the company’s
compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our

review, and

certain elements of the report to Shareholders by the Board on directors’ remuneration

Bill Holland (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Ple, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London, E14 5GL

17 July 2013
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Year ended  Year ended
31 March 31 March
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2013 Notes 2013 2012
(Restated®)
£000 £000
Gross rental income 97,081 92,955
Service charge mcome 13,956 14,139
Total rental and related income from investment
property 111,037 107,094
Property operating expenses 3 (67,017) (68,036)
Net rental and related income from investment
property 44,020 39,058
Profit on disposal of investment property 6,612 16,254
Net valuation gamns on investment property 9 82,694 15,683
Admimstrative expenses 4 (10,936) (11,135)
Net operating profit before net financing costs 122,390 59,860
Fatr value losses on fixed rate loans and borrowings (36) 4,717
Fair value losses on dervauve financial instruments (321) 2,167)
Farr value gains/(losses) on current investments 8 (€]
Other financial income 5 740 512
Financial expenses 5 {11,098) (11,636)
Net financing costs (10,707) (18,011)
Profit before taxation 111,683 41,849
Income tax 6 (21,923) (8,819)
Profit for the year 89,760 33,030
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 89,601 32,848
Minonty interest 159 182
Profit for the year 89,760 33,030
Basic and diluted earnings per share 7 £5 50 £2 02

*see Note 1(b)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprebensive Income

Year ended  Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Jor the year ended 31 March 2013 (Restated®)
5000 £000
Profit for the year 89,760 33,030
Foreign exchange translation differences 3,847 204
Total comprehensive income for the year 93,607 33,234
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 93,448 33,052
Minority interest 159 182
Total comprehensive income for the year 93,607 33,234
Issued Share Translaton Retamed Equity Minonty Total
Sfor the year ended share premium reserve carmngs sharcholders'  interest equity
31 March 2013 capital account funds
£000 £000 2000 £000 £000 £000 2000
Balance at 1 Aprl 2011 as
previcusly reported 4,074 555 18416 815,055 838,100 162 838,262
Impact of change 1n accounting
policy (see Note (b)) - - - 44,876 44,876 - 44,876
Balance at 1 Aprit 2011
as restated 4,074 555 18,416 859,931 882,976 162 883,138
Profit for the year {restated) - - - 32,848 32,848 182 33,030
Foreign exchange
translation differences - - 204 - 204 - 204
Movements in minonty interest - - - - - (26 (26)
Dividends to equity shareholders - - - (12,222) {12,222) - (12,222)
Balance at 1 Apnil 2012
as restated ¢ 4,074 555 18,620 880,557 903,800 318 904,124
Profit for the year - - - 89,601 89,601 159 89,760
Foreign exchange
translation differences - - 3,847 - 3,847 - 3,847
Movements in mnornty wnterest - - - - - (354> (394)
Dwvidends to equity shareholders - - - (12,384) (12,384) - (12,384)
Balance at 31 March 2013 4,074 555 22,467 957,774 984,870 83 984,953
*see Note 1(b)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

31 March 31 March 1 April
as at 31 March 2013 Notes 2013 2012 2011
(Restatecd*) (Restated™)
5000 X000 2000
Assets
Investment property 9 1,407,544 1,254,094 1,224,800
Deferred tax assets 10 8,741 8,539 4,378
Total non-current asscts 1,416,285 1,262,633 1,229,178
Trade and other receivables 1 43,150 69,578 41,221
Current investments 12 236 220 246
Cash and cash equivalents i3 63,513 32,474 75,296
Total current assets 106,899 102,272 116,763
Total assets 1,523,184 1,364,905 1,345,941
Equity
Share capatal 14 4,074 4,074 4,074
Share premmum 555 555 555
Translation reserve 22,467 18,620 18,416
Retained earmings 957,774 880,557 859,931
Total equuty attnbutable to equity holders
of the parent 084,870 903,806 882,976
Mmonty mterest 83 318 162
Total equity 984,953 904,124 883,138
Liabilities
Loans and borrowings i6 268,943 213,085 194,577
Deferred tax Labilities 10 174,017 152,883 151,328
Total non-current habalitics 442,960 365,968 345,905
Bank overdrafts i3 - 150 -
Loans and borrowings 16 18,256 17,941 55,248
Trade and other payables 15 41,844 44,528 40,821
Current taxation 35,171 32,194 20,829
Total current hiabilitics 95,271 94,813 116,898
Total liabilities 538,231 460,781 462,803
Total equuty and liabilities 1,523,184 1,364,905 1,345,941

The financial statements on pages 25 to 48 were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 July 2013
and were signed on 1ts behalf by

I]L»-‘,/\L,,WX}\/

B S E Freshwater Director

D Dawis Dhrect:

*see Note 1(b) U\)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2013 2013 2012
£000 5000 £000 X000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from rent and service charges 123,511 111,453
Cash paid to supphlers and employees (88,132) (89,179
Cash generated from operations 35,379 22,274
Interest recerved 303 509
Interest paid (11,014) (11,525
Distributions to minority interest (394) 26)
Overseas tax paid (294) {az2
Net cash from operatng actvites 23,980 11,110
Cash flows from investing activities
Acqusition and development of
mvestment property (57,668) (25,618)
Proceeds from sale of investment
property 28,454 7,620
Net cash absorbed by mvesting activities (29,214) (17,998)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of bank loans (1,525) 42,375
New bank loans and overdrafts 44 611 150
Repayment of mortgages (24,363) (28,900)
New mortgages 29,374 47,283
Dividends paid (12,384) (12,222)
Net cash generated from/(abscrbed by)
financing activities 35,713 (36,064)
Net increase/(decrease) 1n cash and cash equivalents 30,479 (42,952)
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 32,324 75,296
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on
cash held 710 20
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) 63,513 32,324
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

[ Swigraficant Accounting Polices

Daejan Holdings PLC 15 2 company domiciled m the Unmited Kingdom The consohdated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 comprise the Company and 1uts
subsidianes (together referred to as the “Group™)

The consohdated financial statements were authorised for 1ssuance on 17 July 2013

(a) Statement of comphance

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (*IFRS") and those parts of the Compames Act
2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The Company has elected to prepare 1ts parent company financial statements 1n accordance with UK
GAAP and these are presented on pages 49 to 52

(b) Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements are presented in sterhng, the Company’s funcuonal currency
and the Group’s presentational currency, rounded to the nearest thousand They are prepared on the
historical cost basis except that the following assets and Labilities are stated at their fair value
investment property, derivative financial instruments, fixed rate loans and borrowings and current
asset investments

The accounting policies set out tn this Note 1 have been applied consistently threughout the Group
to all periods presented in the consolhidated financial statements, except as described below

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations became effective for the
year ended 31 March 2013 but none of these had a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except for Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assels (Amendments to
IAS 12),as set out below A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
have been announced but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2013, and have not been
applied 1in preparing these consobdated financial statements None of these are expected to have a
material effect on the conschdated financial statements

With effect from 1 April 2012, the Group has adopted Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets
(Amendments to IAS 12) and changed its accountng policy on measuring deferred tax anising from
investment property that 1s measured using the fair value model in IAS 40 Investment Property
Under those amendments to [AS 12, any deferred tax arising from imvestment property 15 to be
measured using a rebuttable presumption that the carrying amount of that property will be
recovered enurely through sale This presumption may be rebutted if the property 1s depreciable and
held wathin a business model whose objective 15 to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits over the life of the asset The Directors recognise there 15 a need to adopt policies which
provide comparability with general market practice, which s generally to assume recovery through
sale,and also to reflect that, notwithstanding the long term nature of the Group's investment activity,
each of the Group's mnvestment properties are considered to be potentially for sale in the nght
circumstances Accordingly, the Group now measures any deferred tax anising from the revaluation
of investrnent property on the assumption that the carrying amount will be recovered through sale,
1 € after taking account of indexation Previously the Group measured any such deferred tax on the
basis of recovery through use, 1 € without taking account of indexauon

Thus change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively This has had the effect of reducing
the deferred tax habihty and increasing retamed earmngs in the consohdated balance sheet as at
1 Apni 2011 by &44 9 mulion The effect on the consohidated statement of comprehensive income
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Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements onsmue

and the consohdated balance sheet i the current year has been to recogmse a tax credit of
£2 6 muthon (2012 £3 1 mullion tax expense) with a corresponding decrease (2012 increase) in
deferred tax hability The effect of this change on basic and diluted earnings per share 1n the current
year has been an mcrease of £0 16 (2012 £0 19 decrease)

The financial statements have been prepared on a gomng concern basis as explaned 1n the Corporate
Governance section on pages 20 and 21

The preparation of financial statements in conformuty with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumpuons that affect the apphcation of policies and reported amounts
of assets and habihties, ncome and expenscs Although these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge of the events or amounts involved, actual results ultimately may differ from those
estimates The areas involving a lugher degree of complexuty, judgement or estimation arc sct out 1
Note 1(u) below

() Subsidianes

Subsichanes are those entities controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financral and operating pohcies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from 1ts activities In assessing control, potental voung rmights that presently are exercisable
are taken 1nto account

(d) Transacuons ebmmated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unreahsed gans and losses ansing from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in prepaning the consolidated financial statements

() Income available for distribution

Under the articles of association of certain Group mvestment undertakings, reahsed capital surpluses
are not avadable for distribution as dividends

(f) Foreign currency translation

The assets and habiities of foreign operatons are translated to sterling at the foreign exchange rate
ruhing at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated to
sterhing at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates rubng at the dates of the transactions
Foreign exchange differences arising on re-translation are recogmsed directly mn a separate
component of equity The cumulative translation difference for all foreign operations was deemed to
be zero as at the date of transition to IFRS The year end and average rates used for these purposes
were as follows

Year end Average
2013 2012 2013 2012

US Dollar 152 160 158 160

(g) Denvative financial instruments

The Group uses denvatve financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk arising
from operational and financing activiies As these derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting,
they are accounted for as trading nstruments Derivative financial struments are mmtially
recogtused, and subsequently recorded, at fair value The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s the
estimated amount that the Group would recover or pay to termunate the swap at the balance sheet
date, taking 1nto account current interest rates and the credit worthiness of the swap counterparties
The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value 1s recogrused immediately 1in the income statement
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(h) Investment property

IFRS dcfines investment properties as those which are held erther to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both All of the Group's property falls within this defimtion Investment property 1s
mtially recognised at cost and subsequently recorded at fair value

External, independent valuation firms having appropnate recogmsed professional qualifications and
recent relevant experience 1n the location and category of property being valued, value the portfohio
annually at the Company's year end The fair values are based on market values, bemng the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer
and a willing seller 1in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wheremn the parties had
each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion The valuations are prepared exther by
considering the aggregate of the net annual rent recervable from the properties using a market yield
whuch reflects the nisks inherent 1n the net cash flow which 1s then applied to the net annual rents,
or on a sales companison basis Any gains or losses ansing from a change 1n fair value are recogmsed
1n the income statement

When the Group begins to redevelop an exisiing investment property for continued future use as an
investment property, the property continues to be treated as an mnvestment property, and 1s measured
based on the fair value model Interest 15 capitalised on such developments to the extent that such
interest 1s directly attributable to the cost of redevelopment

A property mterest under an operating lease 15 classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis when the Group holds 1t to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both Any such property interest under an operating lease classified as an investment
property 15 carried at fair value Where matenal, the aggregate present value of the mimimum future
lease payments under such leases 15 recognised as a hability

When the Group uses a part of a property it owns and retains the remainder to generate rental
mcome or capital appreciation, the extent of the Group’s utihsation 1s considered to determune the
classification of the property If the Group’s utihsation 15 less than five per cent , thus 15 regarded as
immateral such that the whole property 15 classified as an investment property and stated at fair
value

Acquistions and disposals are recogmised on the date that the sigmificant nsks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred Any resulting gan or loss based on the difference between sale
proceeds and valuation 15 included in the income statement and taxation applicable thereto 1s shown
as part of the taxation charge

(1)  Current investments

Investments comprise equity securities held for trading and classified as current assets stated at fair
value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised 1n the income statement

() Trade and other recervables

Trade and other recewvables are initially stated at fair value and subsequently carried at cost less an
allowance for impairment These assets are not discounted as the effect 1s deemed immaterial

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short term deposits These short term deposits
are highty liquud investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an msignificant risk of changes in value Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and form
an mntegral part of the Group’s cash management Bank overdrafts have therefore been included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis conines

O Dividends

Dividends are recogmsed as a liability 1n the period in which they are approved

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are imtially stated at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost

(n) Net rental income

Net rental income comprises rent and service charges receivable less apphcable provisions and costs
associated with the properties Rental income from mvestment property leased out under operating
leases 1s recognised :n the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease Lease
incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income Service charge
income 1s recognised as the services are provided Net rental income 1s stated net of recoverable VAT

The cost of repairs 15 written off to the income statement n the year in which the expenditure
occurred Lease payments under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease

{0y Dimvidend income

Dividend inconte 1s recogmsed 1n the income statement on the date the entity’s nght to receive
payments 1s established which, 1n the case of quoted secunues, 1s the ex-dividend date

() Taxauon

income tax on the profit or loss for the year compnises current and deferred tax Income tax 1s
recogrused n the income statement except to the extent that 1t relates to items recognised directly
n equity, in which case 1t 1s recognised 1n equity

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of
previous years

Deferred tax 15 provided using the balance sheet lhability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilies for financal reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxaton purposes The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habilines (whach,
in the case of mvestment property, 1s assumed to be through sale), using tax rates enacted or
substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised

(P Segmental reporting

The Company has identified 1ts operating segments on the basis of those components of the Group
which engage in business actuivities from which they may earn revenues and incur expenses and for
which discrete financial information 15 available and regularly reviewed by the Chief Operaung
Decision Maker 1n order to allocate resources and assess performance The Company has determined
the Chief Operating Decision Maker to be the Board of Directors

(0 Imparrment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than investment property (see Note 1 (h)) and
deferred tax assets (see Note 1 (p)), are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there 15 any mdcation of impairment If any such indication exists the asset’s recoverable amount 15
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estimated and an impairment loss recogrused whenever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds 1ts
recoverable amount Impairment losses are recogmsed in the income statement

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater of 1ts fair value less costs to sell and 1ts valuen-
use The valuen-use 1s determuned as the net present value of the future cash flows expected to be
denved from the asset, discounted using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the ume value of money and the risks specific to the asset

(s) Provisions

A provision 1s recogmsed in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, and 1t 15 probable that an outflow of economc benefits will be required
to sctilc the obligation If the effect 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounung the
cxpected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropnate, the nsks specific to the liability

() Loans and borrowings

Floating rate loans and borrowings are imtially recogmsed at fair value and are subsequently recorded
at amoruised cost Fixed rate loans and borrowings are mitially recogmsed, and subsequently
recorded, at fair value In the case of floating rate loans and borrowmngs, transaction costs are
deducted from the far value at recogmition and any differences between the amount mually
recogmsed and the redempuon value 1s recognised 1n the income statement over the peniod of the
borrowings on an effective interest rate basis

(o) Signuficant judgements, key assumptions and estiumates

The Group’s significant accounting policies are set out above Not all of these pohcies require
management to make subjective or complex judgements or esumates The following 1s intended to
provide further detail relating to those accounting policies that management consider particularly
significant because of the level of complexity, judgement or estimation involved 1 their apphcation
and their impact on the consohdated financial statements

(1)  Property valuations

The valuation of the Group’s property portfolio 15 inherently subjective, dependmg on
many factors, including the individual nature of each property, its location and expected
future net rental values, market yields and comparable market transactions Therefore the
valuations are subject t0 a degree of uncertanty and are made on the basis of
assumptions which may not prove to be accurate, particularly in periods of difficult
market or economuc conditions As noted m Note 1 (h) above, all the Group's properties
are valued by external valuers with appropriate quahfications and expenence

() Income taxes

The tax treatment of some transactions and calculations cannot be determined until a
formal resolution has been reached wiath the relevant tax authonties In such cases, the
Group’s pohcy 15 to be prudent in s assessment of the relevant tax charge or credit
Where the final outcome of such matters 1s different from the amounts imtially recorded,
those differences will be reflected in the income and deferred taxes amounts at the time
of formal resclution

Additionally, judgement has been exercised 1n relation to the recognition of deferred tax
assets where the utilisation of the underlying tax losses is uncertan
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()

av)

40

Fixed interest rate loans and borrowings

The treatment of fixed rate debt at fair value through profit and loss reflects the Group’s
overall management, on a fair value basss, of 1ts tnvestment property portfolio together
with the large majonty of the debt whaich finances it This treatment also 15 m order to
provide consistency of accounting measurement between fixed rate debt and floaung
rate debt which has been fixed through the use of interest rate swaps, these two
categories of debt comprise the large majonty of the Group’s total loans and borrowings

Valuation of hedging nstruments

The fair value of hedging instruments that are not traded in an active market 1s
determned by using valuation techniques Management, based on independent advice,
uses 1ts judgement to select appropriate metheds and assumptions which are based
mainly on market condiions exasting at the balance sheet date

Trade receivables

Management uses detais of the age of trade receivables and the status of any disputes
together with external evidence of the credit status of the counterparty in making
judgements concerming any need to impair the carrying values

Segmental Analysis

The Group 1s managed through two discreie geographtcal divistons and has only one product or
service, being investment m property for the generauon of rental income and/or capial
appreciation This 15 reflected 1n the Group’s structure and in the segmeni information reviewed by

the Board

UK USA Eliminations Total
Sfor the year ended 31 March 2013 £000 £000 £000 5000
Rental and related income 78,928 32,109 - 111,037
Property operating expenses 46,578 (20,439) - (67.017)
Profit/(loss) on disposal of property 7,023 @11 - 6,612
Net valuation movements on property 54,420 28,274 - 82,694
Admunistrative expenses 10,227 709) - (10,936)
Profit before finance Costs 83,566 38,824 - 122,390
Fair value losses (1,180) 831 - (349
Other financial income 646 422 (328) 740
Financial expenses 4,123) (7.,303) 328 (11,098
Profit before 1axauon 78,905 32774 - 111,683
Income tax charge (6,888) (15,035 - (21,923)
Profit for the year 72,021 17,739 - 89,760
Captal expenditure 55,202 2,466 - 57,668
lavestment property 1,101,063 300,481 - 1,407,544
Other assets 77,273 46,980 (8,619 115,640
Total segment assets 1,178,336 353,461 (8,613) 1,523,184
Total segment habdities (307,776) (239,068) 8613 (538,231)
Capital employed 870,560 114,393 - 984,953
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UK USA Eliminations Total
(Restated*) (Restated®)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2012 £000 £000 £000 £000
Rental and related income 77,094 30,000 - 107,094
Property operating cxpenscs 47,150 (20,880) - (68,036)
Profit/(loss) on disposal of property 16,494 (240) - 16,254
Net valuation movements on property (2,467) 18,150 - 15,683
Adrministrative expenses (10,598) (537) - (11,135)
Profit before finance costs 33,373 26,487 - 59,860
Farr value losses (4,980) (1,907} - (6,887)
Other financial ncome 402 434 (324) 512
Financial expenses (3,901 (8,059) 324 (11,636)
Profit before taxation 24,894 16,955 - 41,849
Income tax crecit/(charge) 2,378 {11,197» - (8,819
Profit for the year 27,272 5,758 - 33,030
Capntal expenditure 23,544 2,074 - 25,618
as at 31 March 2012
Investment property 991,537 262,557 - 1,254,094
Other assets 77,613 38,110 4,912) 110,811
Total segment assets 1,069,150 300,667 4,912) 1,364,905
Total segment hiabihtes (256,906) (208,787) 4,912 (460,781)
Capnal employed 812,244 91,880 - 904,124

No single lessee accounted for more than 5% of the Group’s rental and related income 1n either year

3 Property Operating Expenses

2013 2012

%000 £000

Porterage, cleaming and repairs 31,407 34,019
Insurance 4,647 4,137
Building services 20,219 18,893
Other management costs 10,744 10,987
67,017 68,036

Of the property operating expenses shown above, an amount of £1,959,000 (2012 - £1,978,000)
related to properties which generated no income dunng the year

*see Note 1(b)
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4 Admanstratwe Expenses

2013 2012
£000 £000
Salaries 6,035 5,895
Drrectors’ remuneration 1,709 1,512
Audit and accountancy 755 730
Legal and other adminsstrative expenses 2,437 2,998

10,936 11,135

Auditors’ remuneration

During the year the Group paid KPMG Audit Plc £31,000 (2012 - £30,000) for the audit of the
Company and £356,000 (2012 - £342,000) for the audit of the Group’'s subsidiarics, together with
£4,000 (2012 - £15,000) for audn related assurance services and £30,000 (2012 - £49,000) for other
services

The Group jomtly employed an average of 139 persons during the year (2012 - 139) The aggregate
payroll costs were

2013 2012
£000 £000
Wages 5,177 5,062
NI contributions 473 456
Pensions 385 377

6,035 5,895

Details of Drrectors’ remuneration are as set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

5 Financial Income and Expenses

2013 2012
£000 £000
Financial mncome
Bank interest recervable 497 168
Other financial income 243 344
740 512
Financial expenses
Interest payable on bank loans 2,445 2,203
Interest payable on mortgages 8,622 9,410
Other interest payable 31 23

11,098 11,636
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6 Taxation

Taxaton based on the profit for the year of the Company and its subsidiarics

2013 2012

(Restated*)

£000 £000

UK corporaton tax 5,900 10,713
UK prior year items (3,014) 619

2,886 11,332

Overseas taxation 385 145
Total current tax 3,271 11,477
Deferred tax 23,258 2,855
Deferred tax - reduction n future tax rate and prior year items (4,606) (5,513
Total deferred tax 18,652 (2,658)
Total tax charge 21,923 8,819

Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit before taxation 111,683 41,849
Corporaunon tax at the standard UK rate of 24% (2012 - 26%) 26,804 10,881
Reduction m future tax rate and prior year items (7.620) (4,894
Higher tax rate on overseas operations 7,169 3,410
Non-taxable items (3,976) o0
Other (454) (488)
Total tax charge 21,923 8,819

UK prior year items for the year ended 31 March 2013 shown above includes the release of
provisions from prior years following a review by the Directors of the tax treatment of certain
transactions, such provisions having previously been made in accordance with the policy set out 1n
Note 1{uX) above

The Finance Act 2012 enacted a reducton 1n the UK corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% with
cffect from Apnl 2013 On 20 March 2013 the UK Government announced that the corporation tax
rate will further reduce to 20% from Apnl 20315, 10 addition to the planned reduction to 21% byApril
2014 previously announced mn the December 2012 Autumn Statement Other than the enacted
change ta 23%, the effects of the announced changes are not reflected in these financial statements
as they were either substanuvely enacted after the balance sheet date or they have not yet been
enacted and, 1n each case, the impact has not yet been estimated

7 Earnmgs per Share

Earnings per share 1s calculated on the earnings, after taxation and minonty mnterests, of £89,601,000
(2012 - £32,848,000, as restated) and the weghted average shares in 1ssue durning the year of
16,295,357 (2012 - 16,295,357)

*see Note 1(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements onneq)

8  Dividends

2013 2012
5000 X000

Amounts recogrmused as distributions to equity holders 1n the year

Final dividend for the year to 31 March 2011,

pad 11 November 2011 @ 50p per share 8,148
Intennm dividend for the year to 31 March 2012,

pad 2 March 2012 @ 25p per share 4,074
Final dividend for the year to 31 March 2012,

paid 9 November 2012 @ 51p per share 8,310

Interim dividend for the year to 31 March 2013,

paid 8 March 2012 @ 25p per share 4,074

12,384 12,222

The Board has recommended a final dividend for the year to 31 March 2013 of £8,799,000,
representing 54p per share The dividend has not been included as a hability 1n these financial
statements

9 Investment Property

Long Sbort Total Total

Freebold Leasebold Leasebold 2013 2012

£000 £000 X000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 997,576 244,874 11,644 1,254,094 1,224,800
Disposals 1)) 499 - (580) (12,628

New acquisitions 36,909 265 - 37,174 15,129

Additions to existing properties 20,362 132 - 20,494 10,489

Revaluation 67,592 9,935 5,167 82,694 15,683

Reclassification 520 (595 75 - -

Foreign exchange movements 11,438 2,230 - 13,668 621

Balance at 31 March 1,134,316 256,342 16,886 1,407,544 1,254,094

Professional valuations of all the Group’s UK investment propertics were carried out at 31 March
2013 by Colliers International, Chartered Surveyors The revalued figures of £1,103 4 mullion are
based on open market values 1n accordance with the Practice Statements 1n the RICS Appraisal and
Valuation Manual The Group’s USA investment properiies were also professionally valued ax
31 March 2013 by Joseph ] Blake and Associates, Inc and Metropolitan Valuation Services, Inc , USA
Certfied General Real Estate Appraisers The revalued figures of £307 2 mullion are based on open
market values Professional valuztions included in the above table have been stated net of
£3 1 million of lease incentives which are included 1n Trade and other receivables

The present value of future mimmum lease payments in relation to the leasehold mvestment
properties 15 not matenal

Contractual obligations not yet invoiced or paid, for the purchase, construction, development or
enhancement of investment properties, amounted to £13 2 mulhon at 31 March 2013 (2012 -
£19 8 mullion)
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10.  Deferred Tax Assels and Liabilifies

2013
Assets Liabilities Net
£000 5000 £000

2012
Assets Liabilities Net
{Restated*) (Restated™)
£000 £000 2000

Investment property
Accelerated tax depreciation
Financial instruments

- (161,848)(161,848)
- (12,169) (12,169)
8,741 - 8,741

- (143,004) (143,004
- G879 U87TH
8,539 - 8,539

8,741 (174,017)(165,276)

8,539 (152,883) (144,344)

The movement in deferred tax is as follows

Accelerated
tax Financial
Investment depreci- instru- Total Total
property ation ments 2013 2012
(Restated*®)
£000 £000 £000 £000 %000

Balance at 1 April
Recognsed 1n ncome
Foreign exchange movements

(143,004) (9,879) 8,539 (144,344) (146,950)
(16,587) (1,947) (118) (18,652) 2,658
(2,257) (343) 320 (2,280) (52)

Balance at 31 March (161,848) (12,169) 8,741 (165,276) (144,344)

11 Trade and Other Recetvables

2013 2012
£000 £000

Rent and service charges 20,717 21,177
Other debtors and prepayments 21,839 47,791
Mortgages granted repayable within one year 594 610

43,150 69,578

Other debtors and prepayments includes £ml milhion relating to disposal of investment property
(2012 - £21 3 milhon)

The ageimng of rent and service charge recervables was as follows

2013 2012

Impair- Impair-
Gross ment Net Gross ment Net
- %000 5000 £000 2000 £000 X000
Not past due 10,803 - 10,803 9,007 - 9,007
Past due by less than one month 5,663 (222) 5,441 7,473 (265) 7,208
Past due by one to three months 2,200 (705) 1,495 2,434 (583 1,851
Past due by three to six months 1,267 (585) 682 2,444 (1,250) 1,194
Past due by more than six months 9,562 (7,266) 2,296 10,888 (8,971) 1917
29,495 (8,778) 20,717 32,246 (11,069) 21,177

*see Note 1(h)
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The movement n the allowance for impairment 1n respect of trade and other receivables dunng the
year was as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Balance at 1 April 11,069 11,626
Amounts written off (3,042) (2,281)
Movement 1n allowance for impairment 751 1,724
Balance at 31 March 8,778 11,069
12 Current Invesiments

2013 2012

2000 1000
Listed securitics 236 220
13 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2013 2012

£000 £000
Bank balances 31,159 22,372
Short term deposits 32,354 10,102
Cash and cash equivalents 1n the balance sheet 63,513 32,474
Bank overdrafts - (150
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement 63,513 32,324

Included within bank balances are tenants' deposits of £2,624,000 (2012 - £2,220,000) 1n the UK
and £1,884,000 (2012 - £1,588,000) 1n the USA, which cannot be used 1in the ordinary course of
business

14 Share Capital

2013 2012
Number £000 X000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 25 pence per share 16,295,357 4,074 4,074

The Company has one class of share, which carries no special nights or nghts to fixed income There
are no restrictions on the transfer of these shares or restrictions on voting rights
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15 Trade and Other Payables

2013 2012
5000 £000
Rent and service charges charged in advance 16,240 15,750
Other creditors and accruals 19,134 22,629
Derivative financial instruments 6,470 6,149
41,844 44528
16 Loans and Borrowmgs
2013 2012
5000 2000
Non-current liabilities
Mortgages 173,800 161,179
Bank loans 95,143 51,906
268,943 213,085
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts - 150
Mortgages 16,881 16,566
Bank loans 1,375 1,375
18,256 17,941
Total loans and borrowings
Bank overdrafts - 150
Mortgages 190,681 177,745
Bank loans 96,518 53,281
287,199 231,176

All mortgages and bank loans are secured on specific investment properties owned by subsidiary

undertakings

The matunty profile of the Group’s loans and borrowings was as follows

2013 2012

Banlk: loans
and overdrafis Morigages Total Total
%000 £000 5000 2000
Due within one year 1,375 16,881 18,256 18,091
Due within one to two years 1,375 16,990 18,365 16,902
Due within two to five years 66,986 61,356 128,342 72,248
Due after more than five years 26,782 95,454 122,236 123,935
96,518 190,681 287,199 231,176
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The nisk profile of the Group's loans and borrowings, after taking account of interest rate swaps, was
as follows

2013 2012
Fixed Floating Total Fixed  Floating Total
%000 £000 £000 X000 £000 £000
Sterling 51,270 71,517 122,787 50,952 28,431 79,383
US Dollar 164,412 - 164,412 151,793 - 151,793

215,682 71,517 287,199 202,745 28,431 231,176

Floating rate bank loans bear rates based on LIBOR The Group's interest rate swaps are set out 1n
Note 17 The interest rate profile of the Group’s fixed rate mortgages was as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Per cent
3035 28,984 -
3540 34,461 30,729
4045 25,663 24 873
4550 32,312 31,357
5055 6,797 6,789
5560 22,454 42,271
6065 27,908 27,859
6570 12,102 11,829
7580 - 2,038

190,681 177,745

The weaghted average rate (after taking account of interest rate swzps) and the weighted average
term of the Group’s fixed rate loans and borrowings were as follows

2013 2012 2013 2012

Per cent. Per cent Years Years

Sterling 615 615 11.6 125
US Dollar 457 505 57 53
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17 Fmancual Assels and Liabilities

The Group’s financial mstruments are analysed into category as follows

2013 2012
Financing Financing
Carrying fncome/ Carrying income/
amount (expense) amount (expense)
£000 £000 2000 £000
Current asset investments 236 8 220 3)
Current assets at farr value 236 8 220 3)
Denvative financial mstruments (6,470) (321) (6,149) (2,167
Fixed rate loans and borrowings (190,681) (8,658) (177,745 (14,127
Current and non-current habilities at
fair value (197,151) (8,979)  (183,894) (16,294)
Trade and other receivables 43,150 243 69,578 344
Cash and cash equivalents 63,513 497 32,474 168
Current assets at amortised cost 106,663 740 102,052 512
Trade and other payables (35,374) (31) (38,379) 23)
Floaung rate loans and borrowings (96,518) (2,445) (53,281 (2,203
Current and non-current liabilities at
amortised cost (131,892) (2,476) (91,660} 2,226)
Total financial mstruments (222,144) (10,707)  (173,282) (18,011)

In common with all businesses, the Group 15 exposed to the following types of nsk which anise from
1ts use of financial instruments

Credat nsk
Liquidity nisk
Market risk

This note presents information about the nature of the Group’s exposure to such nsks, 1ts objectives,
policies and processes for measuning and managing nisk and the Group’s management of capital
Reference to disclosures given elsewhere 1n the financial statements 15 included as appropriate

The Board has overall responsibiity for determiung the Group's risk management objectives and
policies and, whilst retaiming ultimate responsibility for them, has delegated to the finance function
the authonty for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of
those objectives The overall objectives of the Board are to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far
as possible without unduly affecting the Group's compettiveness and flexibihty

Credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit nsk anses from the potential financial loss if a tenant or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails te meet its contractual obligattons and arises prnincipally from the
Group’s trade recervables from tenants
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Trade recefvables

The majonty of the Group’s rental income 1s demanded quarterly 1n advance and demands arc sent
out prior to the due date Management monitors arrears continually and prompt action s taken to
address potential defaults as appropriate The credit worthiness of each tenant 1s assessed prior to
the agreement of the lease Collateral 1s generally requured by the Group to support lease obhgations
In many cases this takes the form of a tenant security deposit but also includes parent company
guarantees or bank or other guarantees where appropriate Provision 1s made on a shding scale
agamnst any rental arrears where recovery 1s 1in doubt or where sohcitors have been nstructed to
recover the debt, with full provision for impairment usually being made where a tenant 15 i arrcars
for more than a year Details of the Group’s trade recervables and the extent of impairment provisions
agamst them are set cut in Note 11

Due to the large number of tenants across various sectors and geographical locations, the Board does
not consider there to be a sigmficant concentration of credit risk

Cash and dertvatwe financial instruments

The credit rating of counterparties to financial nstruments 15 kept under review, particularly in the
current economic conditions The Group’s interest rate swaps are currently significantly out-of-the-
money, consequently, counterparty risk on swaps does not represent a major risk at the current time
The counterparty rsk on cash and shortterm deposits 1s managed by hmiting the aggregate
exposure to any msutution by reference to their credit rating Such balances are generally placed
with major financal instututions where credit nsk 1s not considered significant

Maximum exposure

The aggregate carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, which are stated net of impawrment
provisions, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk, before taking into account the
value of the tenant secunty deposits held and other collateral

Liguidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations
as they fall due and anses from the Group’s management of its working capital and the finance
charges and amortisation of 1ts leans and borrowings

The Group's policy 15 to seek to mamtain cash balances to meet all short and medmuum term
requirements The Group has a low level of gearing relative to the property investment sector as a
whole and has long standing relationships with many leading banks and financial institutions from
which the Board expect to be able 1o raise further funds if required At 31 March 2013, geanng was
18 9 per cent (2012 - 16 9 per cent ) on the basis of gross debt to gross assets Cash and short-term
deposits at 31 March 2013, were £63 5 mullion (2012 - £32 5 mllion) and £18 3 milhon of loans and
borrowings were repayable within one year (2012 - £18 1 mullion) [n addition, at the same date, the
Group had undrawn commutted faciities of £20 0 milhon (2012 - £64 6 mullion), which expire 1n
2017
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The maturity analysis of the undiscounted cash flows ansing from the Group's financial habalities at
31 March 2013 was as follows

Aggregale Due Due Due Due after

Carrying undiscounted within within within more than

amount cash flows one year 1-2years 2-5 years 5 years

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loans 96,518 96,518 1,375 1,375 66,986 26,782
Mortgages 190,681 171,407 13,191 13,887 54,905 89,424
Interest - 55,848 9,077 8,205 18,478 20,088
Interest rate swaps 6,470 7,222 1,281 1,281 3,843 817
Trade and other payables 35,374 35,374 35,374 - - -
329,043 366,369 60,298 24,748 144,212 137,11t

Market risk

Market risk anses mainly from the impact that changes 1n interest rates mught have on the cost of
Group borrowing and the impact that changes in the US$/% exchange rate mught have on the Group's
USA net assets

Interest rates

The Group seeks to reduce the interest rate risk by fixing rates on a majonity of its loans and
borrowings, whilst mawntaimng some loans at floaung rates in order to retain flexibility 1n relauon to
short term interest rates Interest rates are fixed either through the use of fixed rate mortgage finance
or through interest rate swaps The Group does not speculate 1n treasury products but uses these
only to nut exposure to potential mterest rate fluctuations The nterest rate profile of the Group’s
loans and borrowings 1s set out 1 Note 16

It 1s esuumated that a general increase of one percentage point m interest rates would decrease the
Group's profit before taxation by approximately £0 6 million, after taking account of the nterest
swaps 1n place

There also exists a risk to the income statement ansing from the recogmuon and re-measurement of
fixed rate debt and interest rate swaps at fair value It 15 estumated that a general increase of one
percentage pomt 1n mterest rates would give nise to a reduction 1n fair value of fixed rate debt and
mterest rate swaps of £9 8 mathon

Interest rate swaps

The interest rate swaps held by the Group at the year end were as follows

Contracted rate

(excluding margin) Notional principal Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Per cent  Per cent L0000 L000 £000 £000
Maturing 1 more than five years 56 56 25,000 25,000 6,470 6,149

Foreign exchange rates

The Group seeks to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk in relation to 1ts USA net assets by
funding 1ts USA mvestment property with US Dollar denomunated loans and borrowings As the
Group's investment m USA assets are held for the long term and funds are not usually returned to
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the UK, the Group’s policy 15 not to hedge its residual exposure Management momtors ¢xchange
rates on a regular basis and elects to transfer funds only when the rate 1s favourable to do so

It 15 estimated that a 10 per cent depreciation of the US Dollar against Sterhng would cause a
decrease in the Sterling value of the Group’s USA net assets of £10 4 milhion

Capital management

The caputal structure of the Group consists of equaty attnbutable to equity holders of the parent
together with net debt This 15 kept under constant review to ensure the Group has sufficient capital
to fund its operations and that the Group’s strategy of low geanng 15 maintained The Group seeks to
mamntain a balance between longerterm finance appropnate to fund its long-term investment
property holding strategy and cost effectiveness, given avalability of debt 1n the market Equity
comprises 1ssued share capital, reserves and retamned earnings as set out in the consolhidated
statement of changes in equuty Net debt compnses a mix of fixed rate mortgages and shorterterm
bank loans as set out in Note 16 and cash and short term deposits as set out 1 Note 13 All loans and
borrowings are secured agamnst investment property and the bank loans are drawn aganst
commutted facilities

Fair values of financial instruments

The Group’s financial mstruments are erther recorded at fair value or their fair values are not
materally different from thewr carrying amounts

The fair values of fixed rate loans and borrowngs and denvative financial mstruments recorded 1n
the financial statements, have been determuned by discounting the differences between cash flows
based on contractual principal and interest amounts and cash flows based on forecast market rates
As such these measurements are classified as Level 2 as defined by [FRS 7 Financial Instruments
Disclosures The amount of the change in the fair value of the Group's fixed rate loans and
borrowings, both during the penod and cumulauvely, which 1s atinibutable to changes 1n the credit
nisk of the lrabaity 15 immaterial Thus has been detertmuned by assessing the amount of change that 1s
not due to changes in market conditions

18  Related Party Transachions

Day-to-day management of the Group’s properties in the UK 1s mainly carried out by Highdorn Co
Limmted and by Freshwater Property Management Limited Mr B $ E Freshwater and Mr $ I Freshwater
are Durectors of both compames They have no benefical interest in the share capital of Highdorn
Co Limited Mr B S E Freshwater, Mr § 1 Freshwater and Mr D Davis are Directors of the parent
company of Freshwater Property Management Limited but have no beneficial interest in erther
company Mr R E Freshwater has a beneficial interest 1n a trust holding interests 1n shares in Highdorn
Co Limuted

In their capacity as property managing agents, Highdorn Co Limited and Freshwater Property
Management Limited collect rents and incur direct property expenses on behalf of the Group At
31 March 2013, the aggregate net amounts due to the Group from Highdorn Co Linuted and
Freshwater Property Management Limited 1n relation to such agency receipts and payments was
£3 8 muhion (2012 - £5 8 muillton) These amounts are not secured and are payable on demand No
guarantees have been given or recerved and the amounts are settled in cash

Page 46




Daejan Holdings PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2013

The amounts pard by the Group for the provision of property and other management services by
Highdorn Co Limited and Freshwater Property Management Luimited, not included zbove, were as
follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Balance due to related party managing agents at 1 April 674 672
Charged dunng the year 3,925 3,770
Paid during the year (3.754) (3,768)
Balance due 1o related party managmng agents at 31 March 845 674

The Directors’ interests n the Company and the prnincipal shareholders are described on pages 14
and 15

The Board considers that the Directors are the key management personne] of the Group and their
remuneration ts disclosed on page 16

19  Contingent Liabilities

The Group 15 from ume to tume party to legal actions ansing in the ordinary course of business The
Directors are not aware of any current actions which could have a matenal adverse effect on the
financial position of the Group

20 QOperating Lease Agreements

The Group earns rental income by leasing its investment properties to tenants under operating leases
which vary 1n terms and provisions between type of property and type of tenure Leases providing
for contingent rents are rare within the Group’s property portfolio and no amounts for contingent
rents are ncluded 1in rental income for the year (2012 - £Nul)

At the balance sheet date, future mimimum lease payments recevable by the Group under operating
leases were zs follows

2013 2012
&000 2000
Due within one year 67,545 68,478
Due withun one to two years 40,801 41,872
Due within two to five years 82,280 82,475
Due after more than five years 218,710 226,277

409,336 419,102

Many of the Group’s residential properties are let under assured shorthold tenancies which typically
are for imual terms of 12 months or less, whereafter they are cancellable at short notice The Group’s
experience 15 that a significant proportion of such tenancies are held over after the expiry of thewr
izl term
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21 Prncipal Subsidary Undertakings

Except where mdicated the following are indirect subsidiaries of the Company, where the
Company’'s direct and ndirect mterest 15 1n ordinary shares All are wholly owned property
mnvestment companies and are mcluded 1n the consolhdated financial statements

Incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales

Astral Estates (London) Limited

Bampton Holdings Limited

Bampton (B&B) Limited

Bampton (Redbridge) Limited

Brickfield Properties Limuted

City and Country Properties Lumited

City and Country Properties (Birrmngham)
Limited

Crity and Country Properties (Camberley)
Limited

City and Country Properties (Midlands) Limited

Comsun Limited

Dagjan (Brighton) Limited

Daejan (Cambndge) Limited

Daejan (Cardaffy Limited

Dacjan (Care Homes) Limited*

Daejan Commercial Properues Limited

Daejan (Dartford) Limited

Daejan Developments Lirited

Daejan (Durham) Limited

Daejan Enterpnises Lumited

Daejan Estates Limited

Daejan (FH 1998) Limuited

Daejan (FHNV 1998) Limited

Daejan (High Wycombe) Limuted

Dacjan Investments Limited

Daejan Investments (Grove Hall) Limited

Daejan Investments (Harrow) Limited

Daejan Investments (Park) Limited

Daejan (Kingston) Limuted

* Directly owned

Note Mwmnonty intcrests anse on investments n a US subsidiary

Dae¢jan (Lauderdale) Limited

Daejan (NUV) Limuted

Daejan Propertuies Limited

Daejan (Reading) Limuted

Daejan Retad Properties Limiated
Daejan (Taunton) Limited

Daejan Traders Limited”

Daejan (UK) Limited®

Daejan (US) Limited®

Daejan (Warwick) Limited

Daejan (Watford) Lirmited

Daejan (Worcester) Limited
Hampstead Way Investments Lumted
Inputstock Limited

Inputstripe Limited

Lawnstamp Limited

Limebrnidge Co Limited

Pegasus Investment Company Limuted
Rosebel Holdings Limited

Seaglen Investments Limited

St Leonards Properties Limited

The Bampton Property Group Limited
The Cromlech Property Co Limited
The Halliard Property Co Limited

Incorporated 1n the USA (see note)
Daejan Holdings (US) Inc

Daejan (NY) Limited

Dacjan Enterprises Inc
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Comparny Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2013
Notes 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investment 1n subsichary
undertakings 3 1,244,000 1,097,733
Current assets
Debtors 452 -
Cash at bank 25,789 9,907
26,241 9,907
Creditors amounts falling
due within one year 4 (221,840) (193,701)
Net current habihities (195,599) (183,794)
Total assets less current
liabihies 1,048,401 913,939
Creditors amounts falhing due
after more than one year 5 (63,531) (51,906
Net assets 984,870 862,033
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital G 4,074 4,074
Share premium account 7 555 555
Other reserves 7 893 893
Profit and loss account 7 979,348 856,511
Equuty shareholders’ funds 8 984,870 862,033

The financial statements on pages 49 10 52 were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 July 2013
and were signed on its behalf by

Tew ¢ apmw/u"f

B S E Freshiater Director

4o

I} Davis Director
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1 Accounting Policies

The following accounting polictes have been appled consistently in deahing with wems which are
considered matenal in relation to the Company’s financial statements

() Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, modified to
inchede the revaluation of investments in subsidianies, and 1n accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards and applicable law As pernutted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a
separate profit and loss account dealing with the results of the Company has not been presented
The Company's profit for the year after taxauon 15 £132,982,000 (2012 - £36,049,000)

() Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings comprise shares in, and loans to, those undertakings and are
stated at fair value 1n order better to reflect the underlying value of those assets Fair vatue has been
assessed by the Directors having regard to the underlying net assets of the substdiary undertakings
and the fair values of the investment properties held by those undertakings where such farr value 1s
not included 1n the net assets

(c) Foreign currencies

Transacuoens n foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange rubng at the date of the
transaction and gains and losses on translation are included mn the profit and loss account

2 Profit on Ordinary Activities before Taxation

The Company has no staff other than 1ts Directors and their remuneration 1s set out on page 16 of
the Group accounts The parent company audit fee 1s disclosed on page 36 of the Group accounts

3. Investmenls m Subsidhary Underlakings

Shares at
valuation Loans Total
£000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2012 85,390 1,012,343 1,097,733
Loans - (699,153) (699,153)
Addiional investments 708,489 - 708,489
Revaluation 134,455 - 134,455
Effect of foreign exchange differences 2,476 - 2,476
At 31 March 2013 930,810 313,190 1,244,000

The histonical cost of shares 1n subsidiary undertakings 15 £992 0 rmlhon (2012 - £283 5 million)
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4 Creditors Amounts falling due unthin one year

2013 2012

5000 2000

Bank loans and overdrafts 1,375 1,525
Other creditors and accruals 211,360 184,149
Taxauon 9,105 8,027
221,840 193,701

5 Creditors Amounts falling due after more than one year

2013 2012
£000 £000
Secured bank loans 63,531 51,906
6 Share Capital
2013 2012
Number 5000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 25 pence per share 16,295,357 4,074 4,074
7 Reserves
£000
Share premium account
At 1 Apnil 2012 and 31 March 2013 555
Other non-distributable reserves
At 1 Apnil 2012 and 31 March 2013 893
Profit and loss account
At 1 Apnl 2012 856,511
Forcign exchange movements 2,239
Profit after tax for the year 132,982
Dividend paid in the year (12,384)
At 31 March 2013 979,348

In the year 1o 31 March 2009, the Company transferred its shareholdings in certain of 1ts wholly
owned subsidiary undertakings to three intermediate holding compames for a consideraton of
£832 9 million As a result of that transaction, the parent company transferred £645 1 milhon of
revaluation gains relating to these investments to the profit and loss reserve As the transfer of these
revaluation gains arose as a result of a sale of assets within the Group, it s unhkely that the Company
will seek 10 treat the profit and loss reserve thus anising as distributable

Under the articles of associanon of certain Group mvestment undertakings, realised capital surpluses
are not avadable for distribution as dvidends
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8  Reconcilation of Movements in Sharebolders’ Funds

2013 2012

£000 £000
Profit after tax for the year 132,982 36,049
Foreign exchange movements 2,239 106
Dividend paid 1n the year {(12,384) (12,222)
Net movement mn shareholders’ funds 122,837 23,933
Shareholders’ funds at 1 April 862,033 838,100
Shareheolders’ funds at 31 March 984,870 862,033
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Five-Year Record

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

000 2000 000 X000 £000
Total rental and related income 93,973 99913 102,692 107,094 111,037
Property operating expenses (53,4700 (55,983) (60,743) (68,036) (67,017)
Net rental and related income 42,503 43 930 41,949 39,058 44,020

Profit on disposal of investment properties 6,758 5,073 9,257 16,254 6,612
Net valuation (losses)/gains on mvestment

properties (261,603) 24,997 52,024 15,683 82,694
Admmustrative expenses (12,039 (10,013 10,558) (11,135 (10,936)
Net operating (loss)/profit before

financing costs (224,381) 63,987 92,672 59,860 122,390
Net financing costs (23,656) (2,858) (8,309 (18,011) (10,707)
(Loss)/Profit before taxatton (248,037 61,129 84,363 41,849 111,683
Income tax credit/{expense) 69,341 (15,474) (16,530) (8,819) (21,923)
(Loss)/Profit for the year (178,696) 45,655 67,833 33,030 89,760
(Loss)/Earnungs per share £(1097) £2 B0 £4 16 £202 £5 50
Total asscts 1,196,660 1,229,715 1,345,941 1,364,905 1,523,184
Equity sharcholders’ funds 759,263 784,976 838,100 903,806 984,870
Equuty shareholders’ funds per share £4660  £4817  £5143  £5546  £60 44

Amounts shown in the above table for the years ended 31 March 2009, 2010 and 2011 have not been
restated to reflect the change in accounting policy set out in Note 1(b) to the consolidated financial
statements
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Notice of Meeting

Nouce 1s hereby given that the Seventy Eighth Annual General Meeung of Daejan Holdings PLC wall
be held at The Methven Room, CBI, 1st Floor, Centre Point, New Oxford Street, London W1, on
28 August 2013 at 2 00 p m for the following purposes

Ordinary Business
To consider and if thought fit, pass the following Ordinary Resolutions

1 To recewve the Finanaial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 together wath the
Reports of the Darectors and the Auditors (Resolution 1)

2 To approve the Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 March 2013 (Resolution 2)
3 To declare a final dividend (Resolution 3)

4 To re-elect B § E Freshwater as a Director (Resolution 4)

5 To reclect S I Freshwater as a Director (Resolution 5)

6 To re-clect D Dawvis as a Director (Resolution 6)

7 To re-elect R E Freshwater as a Director (Resolution 7)

8 To re-elect A M Freshwater as a Director (Resolution 8)

9 To appomnt KPMG LLP as Auditor, and to authonse the Directors to agree its remuneration

(Resolution 9)
y (prder pf the Board,
M R M Jenner
Secretary
17 July 2013

1 Members are entitled to appownt a proxy to exercise all or any of their rights to attend and to speak and vote on
their behalf at the meeting and at any adjournment of 1t A member may appoint more than one proxy in relation
to the meeting provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the nghts attached to a different share or shares
held by that member If a proxy appomntment 15 submutted without indicating how the proxy should vote on any
resolution, the proxy wll exercise his/her discretion as to whether and, of so, how he/she votes

2 A proxy need not be a member of the Company A proxy formn which may be used to make such appointment and
giIve proxy mstructions accompanies this notice if you do not have a proxy form and believe that you should have
one, or if you require addinional forms, please contact the Company's Registrar, EQuumiti Limited, on 0871 384 2203
Gnternatonal callers +44 121 415 7047) Calls to thus number cost 8p per nunute plus network extras Lines open
830 am to 530 p m,Monday to Friday Members may also appount a proxy through the CREST electromic proxy
appowntment service as descnibed 1n note 13 below

3  To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appointing a proxy must be received by post or (dunng normal
business hours only) by hand to Equunits Lumeted, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA no
later than 2 00 pm on 26 August 2013, together with, of appropnate, the power of attorney or ather authonty (uf
any) under which 1t 15 signed or a duly certufied copy of that power or authonty

4  The return of a completed proxy form, other such instrument or any CREST Proxy Instruction (as described i note
13(a} below) will not prevent a member attending the meeting and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so

5 A vote withheld option 1s provided on the form of proxy 1o enable you 10 mnstruct your proxy not to vote on any
particular resolution However, it should be noted that a vote withheld in this way 15 not a vote'in law and will not
be counted in the calculation of the proporuon of the votes ‘For and ‘Against a resoluuon
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10

11

12

i3

14

15

16

Any person to whom this notice 1s sent who 15 2 person norunated under secuon 146 of the Compames Act 2006
to enjoy information nghts (a“Nomnated Person™) may, under an agreement between lum/her and the sharehotder
by whom he/she was nominated, have a nght to be appornted (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for
the Annual General Meeung If a Nomunated Person has no such proxy appomntment nght or does not wish to
exercise if, he/she may, under any such agreement, have a night to give instructions to the shareholder as to the
exercise of votng nghts

The statement of the nghts of shareholders in relation to the appomntment of proxies un paragraphs 1,2 and 3 above
does not apply to Nomunated Persons The nghts described in these parzgraphs can only be exercised by
shareholders of the Company

To be enttled to attend and vote at the meeung ¢and for the purpose of the determunanon by the Company of the
votes they may cast), members must be registered 1n the register of members of the Company at 600 pm on
26 August 2013 (or, 1n the event of any adjournment, 6 00 p m on the date which 1s two days before the ume of
the adjourned meeting) Changes to the register of members after the relevant deadline shall be disregarded in
determumng the nghts of any person to artend and vote at the meeting

In the case of jount holders, where more than one of the joit holders purports to appownt a proxy, only the
appotwntment submutted by the most sermor holder will be accepted Semonty 1s determuned by the order in whuch
the names of the joint holders appear in the Company s register of members in respect of the jount holding (the
first-named bewng the most serwor)

If a member submuts more than one valid proxy appountment, the appointment recerved last before the latest ume
for the recerpt of proxies will take precedence

Any member attending the meeting has the nght to ask questtons The Company must cause 1o be answered any
such question relating to the business bemg dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need be given if (1) to
do s0 would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or would mvolve the disclosure of confidential
information or (1) the answer has already been givers on a website in the form of an answer to a question or {ui)
it 15 undesirable 1n the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeung that the question be answered

As at the date of 155ue of this notice the Company’s issued share capatal consists of 16,295,357 ordinary shares,
carrying one vote each Therefore, the total voung nghts wn the Company as at the date of 1ssue of this nouce are
16,295,357

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electrome proxy appomntment
service may do so for this meeting by using the procedures descnibed in the CREST Manual which can be viewed
at www euroclear com/CREST CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members who have appointed a voung service provider(s), should refer to therr CREST sponsor or voung service
provider(s), who will be able to take the appropnate action on thewr behalf Please note the following

(a) [n order for a proxy appotntment or mstruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate
CREST message (a “CREST Proxy Instruction™) must be properly authenucated in accordance with Euroclear
UK & Ircland Lumted's specifications and must contain the information requured for such wnstructions, as
descnbed in the CREST Manual The message, regardless of whether 1t constitutes the appointment of a proxy
or 15 an amendment to the wnstrucuon given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be
transmutted 50 as to be received by the ssuer’s agent (ID RA19) by the latest ume(s) for receipt of proxy
appomtments specified 1 this notice For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken 1o be the tume (as
determuned by the umestamp applied to the message by the CREST Application Host) from whrch the 1ssuer’s
agent 15 able to retneve the message by enquuiry to CREST 1n the manner prescribed by CREST After this ume
any change of wstructions to proxies appowted through CREST should be communicated to the appointee
through other means

(b) CREST members and, where applicable, thewr CREST sponsors or voung setvice providers, should note that
Euroclear UK & Ireland Limuted does not make avaiable special procedures in CREST for any particular
messages Normal system tumungs and hmitations wadl therefore apply i relauen to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions It 15 the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member 15 a
CREST personal member or spensored member or has appointed a votng service provider(s), to procure that
hus CREST sponsor or voung service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a
message 15 transmutted by means of the CREST system by any particular time In this connection, CREST
members and, where applicable, therr CREST sponsors or votng service providers are referred in partcular
to those secuons of the CREST Manual concernung practical hnutations of the CREST system and timings

(¢} The Company may treat as invabd a CREST Proxy Instrucuon in the circumstances set out (n regulation
35(5Xa) of the Uncertificated Securines Regulations 2001

Any corporation which s a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives whe may exercise on its
behalf all of 1ts powers as a member provided they do not do 50 in relanon 1o the same shares

A copy of this nouce and other information required by Section 311A of the Companies Act 2006 can be found at
www daejanholdings com

You may not use any fax number, email address or other electromc address provided 1n thus document or on the
proxy form to commurnucate with the Company for any purpose other than expressly stated
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